CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
BOARD MEETING AGENDA
May 11, 2025 6:00 pm
Ridgewood Commons
2060 Ridgewood Drive Cutten, CA 95503

1.0 CALL TO ORDER/FLAG SALUTE
2.0 CONSENT AGENDA
2.1 Approval of Minutes, April 14, 2025
2.2 Approval of Warrants and Payroll
2.3 Approval of Waste Removal Agreement with Eureka City Schools, 2025-26
2.4 Approval of Northern Humboldt Union High School District Transportation Services
Agreement 2025-26
2.5 Approval Western Governor’s University MOU for Student Teaching, Observation, and Teaching,
2025-26
2.6  Declaration of Surplus Costumes from Drama Program for Donation (@$203.27)
2.7 Approval of 2.61 Classified Resignations
3.0 VISITOR COMMENTS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS

The Board reserves the right to limit speakers to three minutes only. The Board may comment, but cannot take
action at this time. The Board President may refer the matter to the Superintendent for review, if appropriate.

4.0 REPORTS/PRESENTATIONS
4.1 Proposition 2 Presentation: Caldwell Flores Winters, Inc.(CFW)
4.2 Cutten-Ridgewood PTA Report
4.3 School Site Council Report
4.4 HBTA Report
4.5 Principals’ Report
4.6 2024 — 2025 Student Registration Report
47 LCAP Update
4.8 BESC Cutten HVAC Project Update

5.0 CORRESPONDENCE

6.0 INFORMATION / POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS

6.1 ConsiderApproval of Authorization for Fiscal Year 2025-26 Warrant Distribution

6.2 Discussion/Consider Approval Open New Student Body Bank Account at Tri Counties Bank,
Authorizing Becky MacQuarie, Superintendent, and Vanesa Carrillo-Salas, Business Officer as
Signors

6.3  Consider Approval of GASB 101 Compensated Absences Policy (Updated)

6.4 Discussion/Consider Approval of Teacher Assignments for 2025 — 2026

6.5 Approval of Employment of 1.0 FTE Certificated Teaching Staff 2025-2026

6.6  Discussion/Consider Approval of the Following Bond Projects Architect Revisions and Bid

Process:
e Ridgewood Phase IT New Construction Segment Newly Constructed Buildings, Upgrades to
Kitchen Facilities and Fire Alarm System
® Resurfacing Cutten Basketball and Playground
e CFW Contracts, Consultation and Facilities Plan



6.7 Discussion/Consider Approval of Bond/Construction Secretary Job Description

6.8 Discussion/Consider Approval to Continue .5 FTE Expanded Learning Community Coordinator
Position for the 2025-26 School Year

6.9 Discussion/Consider Resolution 2025-7 Urging the California Department of Education to Fulfill its
Obligations Under Senate Bill 1315 and to Prioritize the Needs of Small School Districts

7.0 SUPERINTENDENT REPORT
8.0 BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS / COMMUNICATION

9.0 PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEM

10.0 CLOSED SESSION

With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session:

10.1

10.2

10.3

104

10.5

10.6

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (GC § 54957.6)
Agency Negotiator: Dennis Reinholtsen
Unrepresented Employee: Cutten Principal

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (GC § 54957.6)
Agency Negotiator:Dennis Reinholtsen
Unrepresented Employee: Ridgewood Principal

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (GC § 54957.6)
Agency Negotiator:Dennis Reinholtsen
Unrepresented Employee: Superintendent

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (GC § 54957.6)
Agency Negotiator:Becky MacQuarrie
Unrepresented Emplovee: Classified

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE-DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE (GC § 54957)

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (GC § 54957.6)
Agency Negotiator: Becky MacQuarrie
Name of organization representing employees: Humboldt Bay Teachers

Association.

11.0 RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION

12.0 ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE: Any writing, not exempt from public disclosure under Government Code Section 6253.5, 6254, 6254.3, 6254.7, 6254.15, 6254.16, or
6254.22, which is distributed to all or a majority of the members of the governing board by any person in connection with a matter subject to discussion
or consideration at an open meeting of the board is available for public inspection at Ridgewood School, 2060 Ridgewood Drive, Eureka.



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
BOARD MEETING MINUTES
April 14,2025 6:00 pm
Ridgewood Commons
2060 Ridgewood Drive Cutten, CA 95503

1.0 CALL TO ORDER/FLAG SALUTE

Board Members in attendance: Beth Johnston, Mary Dewald, Dennis Reinholtsen. Meeting called to order at
6:06 pm and began with the flag salute.

2.0 CONSENT AGENDA- Johnston made a motion to approve. Second by DeWald. Motion carried 3-0.

2.1 Approval of Minutes, March 10, 2025

2.2 Approval of Warrants and Payroll

2.3 Quarterly Report on William Uniform Complaints

2.4 Approval of MOU Eureka City School & Cutten Elementary (Out of the Box Program
Drop-off)

2.5 Approval of MOU Cal Poly Humboldt & Cutten Elementary for Student Teaching, Observation
or Field Work

2.6 Approval of MOU Eureka City Schools Summer School Food Service Agreement 2025

2.7 Approval of Employment of 1.0 FTE Certificated Teaching Staff 2025-2026

3.0 VISITOR COMMENTS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS -Tracy Benbow shared thankfulness for new blinds at
Cutten. Discussion followed.

The Board reserves the right to limit speakers to three minutes only. The Board may comment, but
cannot take action at this time. The Board President may refer the matter to the Superintendent for
review, if appropriate.

4.0 REPORTS/PRESENTATIONS

4.1 Redwood Energy Authority Presentation-Solar/Electricity-Roku Fukai - presented via Zoom.
Questions were answered during the presentation.

4.2 Studio W Presentation-Brie Gargano - Architect Brie shared via Zoom about Phase 2 of the Bond
project. Questions were answered during the presentation. Becky MacQuarrie shared her thoughts on
Phase 2. Discussion followed. Idea was discussed to start with admin building and extra classroom
before moving on to the parking lot.

4.3 Cutten-Ridgewood PTA Report - Stacey Gabbert shared that carnival is at Cutten on Friday, April
25. May 6th meeting is the Gifts to Schools meeting

4.4 School Site Council Report - Annette Sligh shared that Ridgewood Beautification day wi.l be April
17th from 2:00-3:15

4.5 HBTA Report - Mike Richards shared on behalf of HBTA. Open houses are coming up - teachers
are preparing. Fire truck is coming to RW tomorrow. Several classes at RW have silkworms right
now. School play in May. State floats coming up at Cutten. Negotiations update: They met last week.
HBTA made an offer - the district did not counter. Mike suggested different areas of the budget
HBTA would like the board to consider during negotiations. He thanked the board for their service
and shared a copy of his talking points with the admin and board.

4.6 2024 — 2025 Student Registration Report - no changes

4.7 LCAP Update - no changes

5.0 CORRESPONDENCE - no discussion
5.1 Humboldt County Office of Education Positive Certification Letter



6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0
10.0

INFORMATION / POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

Consider Approval of 2024-25 Medical, Dental and Vision Rates, NCSMIG - Becky MacQuarrie
shared that the cost of many plans went up, some by 10%. Johnston moved to approve. Second by

DeWald. Motion carried 3-0.
Consider Approval of Cutten & Ridgewood 2024-2025 School Plan for Student
Achievement (SPSA) - Discussion. Dennis Reinholtsen shared that ADA comparisons by year
used to be included in Board Packet. Becky MacQuarrie will try to add that into future
meetings. DeWald made motion to approve. Second by Johnston. Motion carried 3-0.
Discussion/Consider Tentative Staffing Options - Becky MacQuarrie shared enroliment
information for 2025-2026 school year. Discussion. A teacher resignation was received today.
The request will be brought to the next meeting to bring back a temporary teacher who was
released.
Discussion/Consider Approval of MOU Humboldt-Del Norte SELPA Transfer of Educationally
Related Mental Health Services Funds (ERMHS) From Member Cutten Elementary to SELPA
- Discussion. DeWald made motion to approve. No second. Motion failed.

Acceptance of Presentation:Final Cost of Issuance Cutten School District General
Obligation Bond, Election of 2024, Series 2025: $2,500.00 - Motion to approve by
Johnston. Second by DeWald. Motion carried 3-0.

Discussion/Consider Approval of Measure K-Bond Project implementation (Phase 2
Ridgewood with modifications) and additional projects (Cutten asphalt, multipurpose
room painting, new tables, HVAC upgrade in all portables, Ridgewood window
upgrade, Cutten Solar). - Becky shared that she will look into how much the front office
and classroom will be. Discussion about other areas of priority - some mentioned were
asphalt at Cutten, MPR at Cutten, HVAC systems, and solar at Cutten.

Discussion/Consider Approval Construction Consultant (10 hrs. month) and
Secretarial/Budget Support (8 hours week). -Discussion. Johnston motioned to approve.
Second by DeWald. Motion carried 3-0.

Discussion/Consider Approval of SEL Curriculum (CalHope Award $40,000)
-Discussion. Motion to approve by Johnston. Second by DeWald. Motion carried 3-0.

Discussion/Vote CSBA Run off Ballot Election- vote for 1 candidate - Discussion. Johnston

made motion to vote for Lisa Olivier. Second by DeWald. Motion carried 3-0.

SUPERINTENDENT/PRINCIPAL REPORT - Annette shared a shout out to Emily Landheer, the district art
teacher, and to the art shared by teachers in the RW commons. Annette and Darcie shared about conferences,
Taiwan student teachers’ visit, the book fair at Cutten, Open Houses and Carnival coming up, Quack and Rabbit
presentations, TK/K planning, the new parking area for RW, history day, Seussical the Musical performance on
Friday and Saturday, May 2-3.

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS / COMMUNICATION - Johnston asked about timers on thermostats.
Discussion. Becky MacQuarrie will look into the possibility of timers.

PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEM -none

CLOSED SESSION - 7:51

With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session:

10.1  CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (GC § 54957.6)

Agency Negotiator: Dennis Reinholtsen
Unrepresented Employee: Cutten Principal

10.2 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (GC § 54957.6)

Agency Negotiator:Dennis Reinholtsen



Unrepresented Employee: Ridgewood Principal

10.3 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (GC § 54957.6)
Agency Negotiator:Dennis Reinholtsen
Unrepresented Employee: Superintendent

104 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (GC § 54957.6)
Agency Negotiator:Dennis Reinholtsen
Unrepresented Employee: Classified

10.5 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (GC § 54957.6)
Agency Negotiator:Dennis Reinholtsen
Unrepresented Employee: Classified

10.6 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (GC § 54957.6)
Agency Negotiator: Becky MacQuarrie
Name of organization representing employees: Humboldt Bay Teachers
Association

11.0 RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION - 8:25
Report of Action Taken

12.0 ADJOURNMENT - 8:25

NOTICE: Any writing, not exempt from public disclosure under Government Code Section 6253.5, 6254, 6254.3, 6254.7, 6254.15,
6254.16, or 6254.22, which is distributed to all or a majority of the members of the governing board by any person in connection with a
matter subject to discussion or consideration at an open meeting of the board is available for public inspection at Ridgewood School,
2060 Ridgewood Drive, Eureka.






ReqgPay12a

Checks Dated 04/01/2025 through 04/30/2025

Check
i Number

3000273257
3000273258
3000273259
3000273260
3000273261
3000273262

3000273263
3000273264
3000273265
3000273266
3000273267
3000273757

3000273758
3000273759
3000273760
3000273761
3000273762

3000273763
3000273764
3000273765
3000273766
3000273767

3000273768
3000273999
3000274000
3000274001
3000274002
3000274300
3000274301

3000274302
3000274303
3000274304

3000274305

3000274306

3000274307
3000275807

Check
Date

04/03/2025
04/03/2025
04/03/2025
04/03/2025
04/03/2025
04/03/2025

04/03/2025
04/03/2025
04/03/2025
04/03/2025
04/03/2025
04/07/2025

04/07/2025
04/07/2025
04/07/2025
04/07/2025
04/07/2025

04/07/2025
04/07/2025
04/07/2025
04/07/2025
04/07/2025

04/07/2025
04/10/2025
04/10/2025
04/10/2025
04/10/2025
04/14/2025
04/14/2025

04/14/2025
04/14/2025
04/14/2025

04/14/2025

04/14/2025

04/14/2025
04/28/2025

Pay to the Order of

Carillo-Salas, V::mesa
CARTER, JOYCE
Goodman, Kimberly A
MacQuarrie, Becky L
MURPHY'S MARKET
Rutter, Darcie R

SECURITY LOCK & ALARM
Sligh, Annette M

Troyer, Chara R

Vodden, Jared D

Seghetti, Nadine M

(HARRIS) SHAFER'S ACE
HARDWARE

ADVANCED SECURITY SYSTEM
AT&T CALNET 2

BDJtech

CA DEPT OF TAX & FEE ADMINISTR

EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT
DEPT

JOHNSON'S MOBILE RENTALS
PG&E

RESTIF CLEANING SERVICE COOP
U.S. BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE
VALLEY PACIFIC PETROLEUM SVCS

Verizon Wireless

BESC Inc.

Campway's Truck Accessory Wd
ERIK MENDES

ZANER-BLOSER ED. PRODUCTS
CRYSTAL CREAMERY

CRYSTAL SPRINGS BOTTLED

WATER

MENDES SUPPLY COMPANY
MISSION LINEN SUPPLY
PG&E

SYSCO SACRAMENTO

BESC Inc.

FRANZ FAMILY BAKERY
HUMB COMMUNITY SERVICES DIST

Board Report

Fund-Object

01-5201_
01-5635
01-5210
01-5201

13-4710
01-4391

01-5210
01-4381

01-5210
01-4310
01-4310
01-5800
01-4374

01-5804
01-5809
01-4310
01-5884
01-9540

21-5800
01-5520
01-5550
01-5637
01-4364
01-4365
01-5921
01-6200
01-6400
01-5800
01-4210
13-4711
01-5531

01-5623
01-4374
01-5550
01-5511
01-5520
01-4710
13-4396
13-4710
13-5623
01-5800
01-6200
13-4710
01-5530

The preceding Chec&s have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization

of the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.
Generated for Vanesa Carillo-Salas (VCARILLO), May 8 2025

009 - Cutten Elementary School District

Expensed Check
Amount Amount

114.24
115.00
50.00
205.79
2453
131.92
103.34 235.26
80.77
877.18
191.35
127.67
432.65
200.74

215.75
338.18
312.48

5.00
654.40

145.46
36.28
2,950.00
1.523.70
343.63
943.94 1,287.57
397.78
25,732.50
7,601.91
622.80
8,911.37
4,612.68
60.00

14.00 74.00
1,124.26
762.03
92.40
6,010.76 6,103.16
2,586.00
5,298.53
20,490.78
146.49 28,521.80
36,659.00
64,000.00 100,659.00
362.88
2,795.54

& ERP for California

Page 1 of 2

11:43AM



RegPay12a Board Report

Checks Dated 04/01/2025 through 04/30/2025

Check Check Pay to the Order of Expensed Check
Number Date Fund-Object Amount Amount
3000275808  04/28/2025 HUMBOLDT WASTE MGMT. 01-5560 106.21
AUTHORITY
3000275809 04/28/2025 PG &E 01-5511 2,006.18
01-5520 33.82 2,040.00
3000275810  04/28/2025 PIERSON BLDG CENTER 01-4381 384.07
3000275811 04/28/2025 Verizon Wireless 01-5921 397.78
3000275812  04/28/2025 WESTERN CHAIN SAW COMPANY 01-4374 121.28
3000275813 04/28/2025 Code, Jennifer K 01-4310 68.91
3000275814  04/28/2025 Girard, Anne E 01-4310 375.46
3000275815 04/28/2025 Goodman, Kimberly A 01-4310 40.47
3000275816 04/28/2025 Hague, Jaime A 01-4310 18.23
3000275817 04/28/2025 Hoertkorn-Rice, Suzanne K 01-4310 195.83
3000275818 04/28/2025 Kencke, Joseph T 01-4310 62.38
3000275819 04/28/2025 MacQuarrie, Becky L 01-4393 94.67
01-5210 30.00 124.67
3000275820  04/28/2025 Rutter, Darcie R 01-4391 147.48
3000275821 04/28/2025 Weitzel, Rebecca 01-4310 13.58
3000275822 04/28/2025 Yip, Andrea N 01-4310 42.10
Total Number of Checks 51 202,544.16
Fund Recap
Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount
01 GENERAL FUND 47 171,462.81
13 CAFETERIA FUND 4 30,935.89
21 BUILDING FUND 1 145.46
Total Number of Checks 51 202,544.16
Less Unpaid Tax Liability .00
Net (Check Amount) 202,544.16
The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization -
of the Board of Trustees. |t is recommended that the preceding Checks be approve_d. Page 2 of 2
009 - Cutten Elementary School District Generated for Vanesa Carillo-Salas (VCARILLO), May 8 2025

11:43AM



WNdvZy

6202 S2 14V (OTIHYIA) SE[ES-O||IBD BSBUEA 10} PBIEISUDD

1913510 [00Y9S Asejuawajg uayIng - 600

Z 1o | abeg

pjuiojii] 10} 33 &

(sz0zZ/0E = 2eq Avd Buipu3

'SZ0Z/ /b = 21eq Aed Bujeis

GZ0Z = 1884 |e0s|d ' =

Gio

) Ag pale)id 'BIO Agq padnoin

uonoaes

HOV PIOA
sy08YD |9oue)

panssiay

Sajllliger] JopusA
S308Y0) JOPUBA

S202/0€/¥0 NIY3 G202/0L/10 @3eQ SS3201d 10} anssiay/jasued # —

§T0Z/0€/¥0 N1Y} GZ0Z/0L/0 31ed Aed Jo} Arewung Jopuap

LL°6¥0°09E 59218202 90°Lg2'L51 SIVLIOL
9Z'969'tY 00°099°L 9Z'9£0'sh Qvliolans 9¥°906'98¢ £6 05°069'€SY oLl IviOL
2¥'692'v02 99'2GE'ZE 89'zse'ze sBuneg Jewwng
1T69.°C 12'691'C uelnsy| (euswa(ddng
00°058 00'058 snoaue(|aosIiN
00°00} 00°00} Aedey puisia
00°099'} 00099t aJej|3pA '8 YilesH
00°0S¢€ 00'0s€ Sjuswysiues
00°0S0'e 00°050°€ HLOY agoy 9.'/60'G6 0s 0S'GGL'2EL 29 payisse|)
0Z'€E oo delel €€'¥95'E sdiyssaquis|y B sang 02808162 (54 00°SES'L2E 8y pajedy i)
mmmwohw jo9fqng |elo] Jakojdwig aakojdwg SNOILDoNg3a 7 _ saako|dwig ajeway adA} uosiad SONINYY3I
LY'TsT'vee £2'002'cLL 225019 Jvio1ans 00°9 05°069'€SY IviolL
99'988 99'988 sbuineg [eaipaly x8|4
ov'v8l o8/ uelnsu| [eyuswelddng zeTS'E Aed uoneoep
€2°980'G6 91'6£5'08 20°/9S'Y) aley|apn g YiesH 00°056'0L sajnisqns
00°002'€ 00'004'¢€ HNUUY paJay|ays xe | 00°0LY spuadng
0£'268'G. gzove'ee EV'S6P' L 08'vyL'L 29/541sS 00’9 snoaue||aosiy
09'LLY'LET L€616'/9 29661 'vy §/'611'€T 09/SH1S 65°ZLY'8 Aing enx3
¥0'286'/8 G/'/€8'0E 81'66.'€C 1G'8E0'L 29/sY43d -20'228's sy¥o0Q
6€'G8G' /€ £8°/6.'ClL ¥8'991'01 66°0€9'C SY3d 19°/82'6EY Aed aseq
sassolo) Joalqng 1erol Jafo|dwg aafojdwig SNOILDONA3IY _ _ sjuaunsnlpy awoouj dnoio Aq SONINYVYI
86'001°18 Tresy'le 95°819'cS Ivlioldns 00'9 06°069'cSt IviolL
LE'TLY LEY 85'8YL'Cl 85°8¥1'Z1 dwog siaxiopm
1E°2LY'LEY €.'81¢ €812 INs
STV IEY 82°989'C1 6C'EVE'9 6eere'g aJeslpaly
01'S66'0%1 Yy esy' Ll TLYL'8 cLUpL'8 Aunoeg Jeroog
92°8€9'Z6¢€ 16'9/8'8 16'9/8'8 Buipjoyyiip sels 0S°069'cSy lejnboy
97'8£9'Z6¢ 6°989'6¢ ¥6°989'62 Buipjouyiip lesepad 009 Aed ssoi9 oN
sassol9 alqng [ejoL tafojdwz SIXVL _ _ sjuawisnlpy apo9 sbujureg Ag SONINYVYI

aakojdwig

awoouj

§2/p20c JedA |eosld

620Z/0€/0 UBNoay) 520zZ/0L/0 3ed Aed

10 Aq Auewwing jjoihed

eLofed



[AL=) 2434
6202 ST 14y (O TIMYOA) SB[ES-0||UED BSBUE/ 10 Pajelauss Jo1ys1q [ooyos Aiejuawalg usynd - 600
“z oz abeq ) T

DIIOHIDD 40 Y3 & (520z/0€/y = 1ed Aed Bulpuz ‘Sz0z/1L/v = @1eq Aed Buiels 'gz0z = Jea [eosi4 ‘6 = 610) Aq pasayli4 'BI0 Aq padnois)  uonoajes

oLl VI€56'562 V101

19N oJa7

SPIOH %0940

19N aAneboN 51°€00'959 S1°€00'959

HOV 19N [enied SUONNqIIUOD "6gZ1E'207 59216202 Aulger pusIq
52 £8'091'92 $¥08YD suononpad go'z€2°2G1 05'069'€SY sBuiule3 ssoin
58 19'261'692 syisodaq paug fed 18N peg6's62

o _ _ i _ Ez_ _ _ V1va ONIONVIVE

GC/YZ0T 1ed A jeOSl]

6202/0€/10 Ubnoay 5Z0z/0L/0 @eq Aed

Bi10 Aq Arewiwing [jolhed eLoled



Paul Ziegler, Assistant Superintendent
Business Services
2100 ] Street | Eureka, CA 95501

- .f\._,-'| ?‘-._«" P ‘.-u_.-\_/

Eureka City
Schools

WASTE REMOVAL AGREEMENT

‘Whereas the Cutten School District is in need of waste removal services;

Whereas Eureka City Schools has available waste removal services;

Whereas Education Code Section 35160 provides authority for Eureka City Schools to enter into
arrangements that are not violative of existing law; and

YVVYV

» Whereas Education Code Section 1200 et seq provides authority for the Cutten School District to
enter into arrangements that assist school districts;
> Therefore, the Cutten School District and Eureka City Schools agree as follows:
1. The term of this agreement is from July 1, 2025 through June 30, 2026.
2. This agreement may be terminated by either party at any time by the giving of sixty (60) days written
notice.
3. Eureka City Schools shall provide waste removal services for the Cutten School District at the
following sites:
Cutten School Ridgewood School
4182 Walnut Drive 2060 Ridgewood Drive
Cutten, CA 95534 Cutten, CA 95534
(2) two-yard containers (1) two-yard container

Cutten School District shall provide and maintain two (2) two-yard containers at Cutten School and
one (1) two-yard container at Ridgewood School. ECS will provide for pick-up two times per week.
Cutten School District agrees not to place hazardous waste or construction debris in the containers,
and agrees to be fully responsible for any cost associated with the removal of any Hazardous Waste
placed in the containers.

4. The Cutten School District shall pay to Eureka City $703.00 per container per month for a sum of
$2,109.00 beginning July 1, 2025. Such amount may be adjusted by the percentage of increase in the
transfer site disposal fees and fuel cost. Cutten School District agrees to pay from a monthly invoice
via inter-district transfer for waste disposal services. Eureka City Schools will have the responsibility
for keeping appropriate records of disposal charges at the landfill.

5. Eureka City Schools and the Cutten School District shall mutually agree to indemnify and hold
harmless each other and their employees against any and all loss, damage, or liability (including court
costs and attorney’s fees) arising against the other as a result of their own discharge of their
obligations identified in this agreement. If liability is shared between the parties, each party shall be
responsible only to the extent of its proportionate liability. This obligation shall survive the
termination of this agreement, and shall apply to any and all claims asserted with regard to the
services provided for in this agreement.

6. The Cutten School District and Eureka City Schools shall provide Workers Compensation coverage
for their respective em c? Nothing in this agreement shall be construed as providing that the

& employees of the other entity.

; 7
/S Ll A
Supérimendenz? Authorized Designee Paul Ziegler, Assistant Superintendent
Cutten School Pistrict Eureka City Schools

Date: 1}/ z / ~ & ;—_f Date:

eurekacityschools.org (707) 441-2412 | Fax (707) 441-0292



NORTHERN HUMBOLDT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
TRANSPORTATION SERVICES AGREEMENT
2025-2026 SCHOOL YEAR

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the CUTTEN DISTRICT (CSD) at its
Board of Trustees meeting on, , and the NORTHERN HUMBOLDT UNION HIGH

SCHOOL DISTRICT (NHUHSD), at its Board of Trustees meeting on May 13, 2025.

(CSD) and NHUHSD hereby agree as follows:

L. Description of Services: NHUHSD agrees to provide the following services to (CSD): (Mark
with a “X” all that apply and NA for those that don’t apply)

N/A 1. Regular Home-to-School Transportation
II. Field Trips (Services provided based on availability of drivers.)

N/A III. Special Education Transportation Services (Services provided based on availability
of drivers.)

X IV. Maintenance Service
V. Fuel Agreement
VI. Bus Storage

2. Term of Agreement:

The term of this Agreement shall be from July 1, 2025, to June 30, 2026.

3. Use of Facilities:

NHUHSD will provide the Facilities (and any associated equipment) for use by (CSD) subject to
the terms and conditions of this Agreement. (CSD) and its employees may use the Facilities subject
to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

4. Modifications:

This Agreement may be modified or amended in writing without additional consideration at any
time by mutual consent of the parties.

5. Applicable Law and Venue:

This Agreement will be governed by the law of the State of California and venue shall be in the
Superior Court of Humboldt County and no other place. Every provision or clause required by law
to be inserted in this Agreement shall be deemed to be inserted and the Agreement shall be read and
enforced as though it were included. If for any reason such provision is not inserted, or is not
correctly stated, then upon application of either party, the changes shall be made by amendment to
this Agreement which is acceptable to both parties.



10.

Execution in Counterparts:

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be an original,
but all of which together shall constitute one instrument.

Authorization:

Each individual executing this Agreement, or its counterpart, on behalf of the respective party,
warrants that he/she is authorized to do so and that this Agreement constitutes the legally binding
obligation of the entity which he/she represents.

No Third Part Beneficiaries:

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create any duty or any liability to any person or
entity not at party to this Agreement.

Additional Conditions:

A. While providing services under this Agreement, NHUHSD is an independent contractor and
not an officer, agent, or employee of (CSD). NHUHSD shall not perform any services
otherwise provided for under this Agreement if specifically not requested to do so by (CSD),
nor interfere with the policy-making functions of (CSD) unless expressly requested to do so.
The parties also understand that some of the services to be performed under this Agreement
may require additional express written authorization from (CSD) and will not be performed
unless and until such authorization is given.

B. NHUHSD shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify (CSD) from and against any i ability,
claim, action, cost, damage or loss for injury, including death, to any person or damage to
any property to the extent that such is caused by, or results from, the negligence or
misconduct of NHUHSD or its officers, agents, or employees or others under its control.
This obligation shall continue beyond the term of this Agreement as to any act or omission
which occurred during or under this Agreement.

C. (CSD) shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify NHUHSD from and against any liability,
claim, action, cost, damage or loss for mjury, including death, to any person or damage to
any property to the extent that such is caused by, or results from, the negligence or
misconduct of (CSD) or its officers, agents, or employees or others under its control. This
obligation shall continue beyond the term of this Agreement as to any act or omission which
occurred during or under this Agreement.

D. This Agreement may be terminated at any time by either party upon thirty (30) days prior
written notice. Any notice of termination shall be transmitted via hand delivery, facsimile or
U.S. mail.

Scope of Work and Compensation:

As full compensation for all services contemplated by this Agreement, NHUHSD shall receive the
following from (CSD): (Mark with a “X all that apply and NA for those that don’t apply as in
1 above)



N/A

I. Regular Home-to-School Transportation (N/A currently due to driver shortage):

NHUHSD will provide home-to-school transportation of Regular Education students of the
(CSD).

Bus Charges Fiscal Year §
$4.25 per mile and $57.12 per hour for driver.
The per mile charge will be adjusted quarterly to reflect increased fuel prices of
5% or greater as of July 1, 2025.

II. Field Trips:

NHUHSD will provide transportation of students for field trips and/or other extra-curricular
activities of the (CSD). The availability of field trips may be limited depending on the
availability of drivers.

Bus Charges $4.25 per mile and $57.12 per hour for driver.
The per mile charge will be adjusted quarterly to reflect increased fuel prices
of 5% or greater as of July 1, 2025.

Van Charges IRS rate plus 20% plus a $35 fee per van per rental. NHUHSD driver may be
requested at $57.12 per hour.

__N/A TII. Special Education Transportation Services:(N/A currently due to driver

X

shortage):
NHUHSD will provide transportation of Special Education students of the (CSD).

Apportionment for Special Education Transportation and excess costs at a rate of
$N/A per mile. The per mile charge will be adjusted quarterly to reflect increased fuel prices of
5% or greater as of July 1, 2025.

In the event that it is impossible to transport a student with disabilities due to medical needs,
safety issues for the student or passengers, availability of drivers, or other unforeseen
circumstances, alternative transportation may need to be secured. Alternative transportation
will be discussed with (CSD) to determine the best solution available. If the best solution of
alternative transportation is provided by NHUHSD and creates an additional expense, the
additional expense will be covered by (CSD).

IV. Maintenance Service:
NHUHSD shall provide maintenance services to (CSD) vehicles, as requested. These
services include, but are not limited to preventive maintenance services, smog inspections,

repairs, and safety checks.

The service rate is $100.00* per hour per mechanic billed in quarter hour increments. Parts
are charged at the cost plus 8% for handling fees and indirect costs. Emergency road call



service requiring time outside of regular business hours, 7:30 AM to 4:30 PM, will be
charged time and one-half, $150.00* per hour mechanic billed in quarter hour increments.

V. Fuel Agreement:

—_—

NHUHSD shall provide renewable diesel fuel for (CSD) vehicles.

Costs will be calculated based on the current bulk rate price charged to NHUHSD plus 20%
per gallon handling fee. All fuel use reports are the responsibility of (CSD)

VI. Bus Storage:

—_—

NHUHSD will provide the facilities for storage for (CSD) vehicles based on available
space.

The storage rate is $100.00 per month per vehicle for a bus.
The storage rate is $50.00 per month per vehicle for a van.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the days and year first
written above.

FOR: FOR:

CUTTEN SCHOOL DISTRICT NORTHERN HUMBOLDT UNION HSD
President, Board of Trustees Natalie Giannini, President, Board of Trustees
Date: Date:

Superintendent Roger Macdonald, Superintendent

Date: Date:




Western Governors University
4001 South 700 East, Suite 700, SLC, UT 84107

CLINICAL EXPERIENCE AGREEMENT

This Clinical Experience Agreement (Agreement) is made between Western Governors University, a Utah
nonprofit corporation (University or WGU), and Cutten School District (District}, and is effective as of the date of
District’s signature below {Effective Date).

WGU is regionally accredited by the Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities (NWCCU). University
Teacher Education programs are further accredited by the Council for the Accreditation of Educator Preparation
{CAEP) and the Association for Advancing Quality in Educator Preparation (AAQEP). University represents that each
teacher/principal Candidate assigned to District for Student Teaching/Practicum is validly enrolled in an approved
University educator preparation program and meets District’s background requirements.

A. Definitions. For the purposes of this Agreement, capitalized terms* will have the following meanings:
1. Candidate refers to a student enrolied in a University program leading to an education degree.

2. Mentor Teacher refers to a District employee who is the contracted teacher in the classroom to which the
Candidate is assigned.

3. Clinical Supervisor refers to a qualified individual who will supervise and complete observations and
evaluations.

4, Advanced Programs refers to University programs that are designed for licensed teachers to earn an
endorsement or certification.

5. Preclinical Experience refers to the active participation by a Candidate in a wide range of in-classroom
experiences to develop the skills and confidence necessary to be an effective teacher and prepare for
Student Teaching.

6. Student Teaching refers to the active participation by a teacher Candidate in the duties and functions of
classroom teaching under the direct supervision and instruction of a Mentor Teacher and/or Clinical
Supervisor.

7. Practicum refers to the University Clinical Experience requirements for licensed teachers in an advanced
endorsement program. Practicum length can range from 10 days to 12 months, depending on program
and state requirements.

8. Clinical Experience refers collectively to the Preclinical Experience and Student Teaching and/or Practicum.

*References to “District” shall include the school.

B. Mutual Expectations. A placement site is a District where University places Candidates for a Clinical
Experience with Mentor Teachers/principals, with an aim to co-construct a mutually beneficial arrangement
for clinical preparation and the continuous improvement of Candidates, and to share accountability for
Candidate outcomes. The school administrator and Mentor Teacher will have the opportunity to provide
critical feedback to inform program improvement through surveys at the end of each experience.

C. Mutually Beneficial Activities. The parties agree to participate, to the extent feasible, in the activities outlined
below:

1. When available, University staff may participate in District employee events and conferences, as
appropriate, and District agrees to inform University of such opportunities.

2. Provide District with recruitment and talent acquisition planning and support from University’s Career &
Professional Development service(s) team, based on District compliance with University’s Employer
Recruiting & Guidelines.

o As possible, District will respond to quarterly survey requests from University’s Career &
Professional Development team about hiring plans and new hires from University.

3. University and District staff will co-select Mentor Teachers and Clinical Supervisors based on University
requirements.



District employees who have been admitted to University may apply to receive aid so long as they meet
scholarship eligibility requirements (University will retain sole discretion in funding and award decisions).

University may invite District staff to participate in a focus group to:

o provide feedback for improvement and continuous development of observation and evaluation
instruments of Candidates, Mentor Teachers, and Clinical Supervisors; criteria for selection of
Mentor Teachers and Clinical Supervisors; and curriculum development;

o review data on Clinical Experiences and Candidate success to potentially modify selection
criteria, determine future assignments of Candidates, and make changes in Clinical Experiences;

o review how the depth, breadth, diversity, coherence, and duration data on Clinical Experiences
are linked to student outcomes and Candidate performance.

D. Recordings. District recognizes that University requires its Candidates to video record in the classroom for
evaluation purposes and agrees to permit video recording consistent with the conditions set forth in Exhibit A

(Video Recordings).

E. Mentor Teacher Standards. District, with the input of University, will provide the teacher Candidate with a
Student Teaching assignment in a school and classes of District under the direct supervision and instruction of
a Mentor Teacher who meets the following minimum requirements:

1.

Holds a teaching credential or license: (i) for the subject area and/or grade level being taught; and (ii) in
the state where Student Teaching occurs.

Has: (i} a minimum of three (3) years of content area teaching experience (five (5) years preferred), with
(ii) two (2) or more years teaching in the placement school and/or District, and (iii) strong evaluations.

Evidence of positive impact on student learning in the classroom as demonstrated by ratings at or above
effective (or equivalent} when a state, district, or school provides such ratings.

Successfully and with positive impact mentored student teachers, colleagues, and/or other adults.
Competently uses technology for communicating via email and completing online evaluation forms.

Will demonstrate and model the professional dispositions and ethics expected of teacher Candidates and
University faculty and staff, as follows:

o All individuals can learn o Communication

o Belonging O Integrity

o Empathy O Professionalism

o Growth Mindset o Intellectual courage

Complete University’s training to understand University policies, processes, procedures, and how to
effectively mentor adult learners.

For California Districts Only: As required by the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC)
Program Sponsor Alert (PSA) 19-05, Mentor Teacher has documented completion of training/professional
development equivalent to ten (10) hours that includes: a twa {2)-hour orientation to program
curriculum, and eight (8) hours training in effective supervision approaches such as cognitive coaching,
adult learning theory, and current content-specific pedagogy and instructional practices.

F.  Clinical Supervisor Standards. A University Clinical Supervisor provides guidance, support, on-site assistance,
assessment and feedback to a teacher Candidate throughout the Clinical Experience. To act in this role, a
Clinical Supervisor must have:

o vk wN e

A minimum of three (3) years teaching experience in K-12.

A master’s degree in education or related field.

A current teaching license in the content area of supervision.
Experience teaching in the content area of supervision.

Ability to successfully complete a background clearance, if requested.

District and principal approval (if a District employee).

WGU Clinical Experience Agreement (May 2023)



7.

Ability to consistently demonstrate and mode! the professional dispositions and ethics expected of
teacher Candidates and University faculty and staff, as follows:

o All individuals can learn o Communication

0 Belonging o Integrity

o Empathy o Professionalism

0 Growth Mindset o Intellectual courage

G. University Responsibilities. University will:

1

10.

Select qualified Candidates who have been prepared with the appropriate educational background,
knowledge, skills, and professional disposition to participate in a Clinical Experience.

Provide Mentor Teacher with compensation for participation in Clinical Experience as described in this
Agreement. The Mentor Teacher may also receive professional development hours connected to the
successful completion of University, and any state required Mentor Teacher training.

Be responsible for the selection, assignment, training, and compensation of Clinical Supervisors.

Require Candidates to have a fully cleared background check acceptable to District prior to participating in
Clinical Experience activities.

Where required by state regulation or District policy, ensure Candidates have a current tuberculosis (TB)
risk assessment and/or examination. Upon request, Candidates will be required to provide documentation
to District prior to participating in a Clinical Experience.

Provide opportunities for feedback regarding improvement of University Candidate preparation.

Provide professional development training to Mentor Teachers regarding University processes and
procedures.

Maintain an online site for support, resources, and training for Mentor Teachers.

Facilitate a cohort seminar in which teacher Candidates will participate with a community of peers to
receive support during Student Teaching and the final performance assessment.

Maintain general responsibility for instruction, academic evaluation, and related academic matters
concerning Candidate participation in the Clinical Experience, including evaluation and grading.

H. District Responsibilities. District, or school administrator, will:

1

Nominate one or more qualified Mentor Teacher(s) by providing a completed copy of the Mentor Teacher
Nomination Form to University’s Field Placement Team.

Allow the Clinical Supervisor access to the host school and classroom, including virtual settings, for the
specific purpose of observing Candidates.

Where applicable and where a Teacher Candidate will serve as a contracted teacher, District agrees to
provide a Mentor Teacher during Student Teaching.

University utilizes video recordings for both observations and teacher performance assessments. District
agrees to allow video recording and/or live streaming for completion of observations and teacher
performance assessments for all University programs. (See Exhibit A for details regarding video
recordings.)

Notify University about any changes to District policies (e.g., COVID and other healthcare policies).

Provide Candidates with any District policies and procedures to which Candidates are expected to adhere
during the Clinical Experience and while on District premises.

Through the involvement of the Mentor Teacher and/or school administrator, participate with the Clinical
Supervisor and teacher Candidates in two evaluations: one mid-way through Student Teaching, and a final
evaluation at the end of Student Teaching. University shall be responsible for the format of evaluations.
o See Advanced Programs Practicum section below for evaluation requirements for Educational
Leadership, English Language Learning, and Master of Special Education.

WGU Clinical Experience Agreement (May 2023)



8 Provide Candidates opportunities to observe, assist, tutor, instruct, implement effective teaching
strategies, and conduct research, as appropriate, during the Clinical Experience.

9. Provide opportunities, when possible and appropriate, for Candidates to use technology to enhance
student learning and monitor student progress and growth.

10. Provide opportunities, when possible and appropriate, for Candidates to experience working with diverse
student populations, including English language learners and students with exceptional learning needs.

11. Encourage Mentor Teachers to participate in University’s training to understand University policies,
processes, procedures, and how to effectively mentor adult learners.

12. Encourage administrators and Mentor Teachers to participate in University feedback surveys (offered at
the end of the Clinical Experience) to report on Candidate quality and preparation and to provide program
feedback to University for continuous improvement.

13. Adhere to any then-applicable state requirements related to training/professional development.

14. For California Districts Only: Require Cooperating Teachers to complete and document
training/professional development equivalent to ten (10) hours that includes: a two (2)-hour orientation
to the program curriculum, and eight (8) hours of training in effective supervision approaches such as
cognitive coaching, adult |earning theory, and current content-specific pedagogy and instructional
practices (as required by the CTC).

Advanced Programs Practicum. The following additional requirements apply to Advanced Programs Practicum:

1. Candidates are licensed teachers who are in most cases completing the Practicum in their own classroom
using a qualified individual within their school as a Clinical Supervisor who meets the applicable
qualifications and requirements.

2. Each Candidate will:

o have a relationship with the school and arrange placement by obtaining District approval.

o secure his/her own Clinical Supervisor, subject to approval of University’s Field Experience team
to ensure the Clinical Supervisor meets program requirements.

o provide a valid background clearance, liability insurance, and teaching license.

o comply with any other applicable District requirements.

3. Evaluations of Candidates are as follows:
o Educational Leadership - 4 total (2 evaluations during the first Practicum course, and 2 during the
second Practicum course)
o English Language Learning - 3 total (2 observations and 1 final evaluation)

Confidentiality & Education Records

1. District acknowledges that the education records of assigned Candidates are protected by the Family
Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), and agrees to comply with FERPA and limit access to those
employees or agents with a need to know. Pursuant to FERPA, and for the purposes of this Agreement,
University designates District as a “school official” with a legitimate educational interest in such recards.

2. University shall instruct Candidates of the necessity of maintaining the confidentiality of all District
student records. District shall not grant Candidates or University employees access to individually
identifiable student information unless the affected student’s parent or guardian has first given written
consent using a form approved by District that complies with FERPA and other applicable law.

Additional Terms

1. Term. This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall continue for three (3) years from
the Effective Date, or until such time as either party gives the other party thirty (30) days advance written
notice of its intent to terminate the Agreement. In the event of termination, any Candidates at District as
of the date of such notice shall be permitted to complete their Student Teaching or Practicum.

2. Points of Contact. Fach party shall designate a point of contact for communication and coordination of
Student Teaching or Practicum. Contact information is set forth following the signature block.

WGU Clinical Experience Agreement (May 2023)



3. Right to Accept or Terminate a Placement. District may refuse to accept for placement, or may terminate
the placement, of any Candidate based upon its good faith determination that the Candidate is not
meeting performance standards or is otherwise deemed unacceptable to District. In such cases, District
shall notify University in writing and state the reasons for such decision.

4. Insurance.

o University Insurance. University represents and warrants that it provides and maintains general
liability insurance with limits of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 annual
aggregate and, upon District’s request, shall provide a certificate of insurance as evidence of
coverage. University shall maintain, at its sole expense, workers’ compensation insurance as
required by law.

o Professional Liability Insurance. Candidates will be responsible for procuring and maintaining, at
their own expense, professional liability insurance for the duration of the Clinical Experience with
minimum limits of either: (i) $1,000,000 per occurrence and $3,000,000 annual aggregate, or (ii)
$2,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 annual aggregate.

5. Status of Parties. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to or shall be construed to constitute an agency,
employer/employee, partnership, or fiduciary relationship between the parties. Neither party will have
the authority to, and will not, act as agent for or on behalf of the other party or represent or bind the
other party in any manner. No Candidate or other third party shall be a beneficiary of, or have any right to
enforce the terms of this Agreement.

6. Non-Discrimination. Each party agrees to comply with all applicable non-discrimination laws, and will

accept, assign, supervise, and evaluate qualified Candidates regardless of race, sex, sexual orientation,
religion, creed, national origin, age, disability, veteran status, or any other basis protected by law.

7. Entire Agreement. This Agreement represents the entire understanding between the parties relating to
the subject matter and supersedes all prior oral or written agreements. This Agreement may be modified
only in writing, sighed by both parties.

The parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date.

UNIVERSITY DISTRICT

e
ov: __ Jeunifer Z. Doshion v é,éé

Title: Director, Field Experience, School of Education Title: :é‘ L M V%é"d&r /YZ'

Date: / Z Z2 /2\5

Point of Contact: Point of Contact:
. . ’ (e
Field Experience Outreach . CUM N C/ 0
j warm @

Email: tc_outreach@wgu.edu Email: é l’)’}ﬂ CQ/ -

Phone: i —~ ’

2077 -Y¥/-3700

For notice purposes: For notice purposes:
Attn: General Counsel
Western Governors University
4001 South 700 East, Suite 700
Salt Lake City, UT 84107-2533
Email: legal@wgu.edu Email:

WGU Clinical Experience Agreement (May 2023)



Exhibit A
Video Recording

Teacher Performance Assessment. District acknowledges that Candidates must complete a teacher

performance assessment, which includes the submission of video recordings of themselves teaching
in the classroom and of real artifacts (such as lesson plans, video, and student work samples).
Recordings provide an avenue to evaluate performance and determine competency.

Clinical observation / Evaluation. University utilizes a secure, interactive, online, cloud-based platform

to accommodate for the changing classroom environment and protect the health and safety of
participants. Candidates upload recorded video submissions or participate in livestreams for
feedback, scoring, and critiquing of video assignments, and Clinical Supervisors leave time-stamped
feedback.

Guidelines. The following guidelines are provided to Candidates. District understands that Candidates
are not employees or agents of University and that any further precautions regarding the privacy of
District students should be agreed directly between the District and Candidates.

Teacher Candidate Guidelines for Video Recordings

@]

o}

Secure appropriate permission from the parents/guardians of your students and from adults who
appear in the video recording.

To protect confidentiality, remove your name and use pseudonyms or general references (e.g.,
"the district") for your state, school, district, and Mentor Teacher. Mask or remove all names on
any typed or written material (e.g., commentaries, lesson plans, student work samples) that
could identify individuals or educator preparation programs. During video recording, use only the
first names of students.

You must follow appropriate protocol to submit recordings to University.

You may not display the video publicly (i.e., personal websites, YouTube, Facebook).

You may not use any part of the recordings for any personal or professional purposes outside of
performance evaluation.

You must destroy all video recordings once the evaluation is complete.

WGU Clinical Experience Agreement (May 2023)



202 J0j Juawjjoluz / Buyiels pejesies LONLSIa TOOHOS NILLND

GGS Gss
GSG A% s|ejol
Sz 1z d1I3|BeA 'Uosealn sopuelg ‘11oYslIn 9
6 8 KaupAs ‘ALiedo 990ABY| ‘Y00D 9
09 uixis ye lZ BOISSa "'YNws ealpuy ‘diA 9
cl el AoaupAg ‘Auenop 989Ae)y| Yoo G
154 14 Anw3 ‘uipep IpUBYS ‘Biowysy S
T4 14 eww3y ‘yuoN ueghiep ‘'sayois S
¥8 yuid Gc 14 essueN ‘jlog uar ‘spoQ S
*1:14 0c (¥4 eley ‘pieqgny Alw3 ‘Ayepng ¥
|ejol £z 22 Ipuelg ‘uosmen awier ‘enbey ¥
usyn) €9 yuno4 0z 0e euuy 'Ajenoy Aoel) 'moquag P
[44 ¥4 MW ‘wodsinH JeleH ‘uosiep €
1914 1514 ualey ‘ouid Aespurq ‘supfiep €
L9 Pyl 44 |4 19BpI9 ‘wons|iny eul] ysipueig [
L b (3 B uebys|y ‘vopng Jojhey ‘ssuor ods
6l 8l BUIOT PPy N ‘spieyory Z
Ll 8l I81ysy ‘uosiafbjoH IpuI ‘uog [4
6l 6l BUs7 ‘||lapsielg auuezng ‘aoly <
172 puodag 6l 8l He)g ‘ypomesnoy Aueyreg ‘'uosiqq) 4
6l 6l e(|3 usubepy lueq ‘syouuIH L
8l 6l 3|I8YdIN ‘ueaIn Q0 ‘axousy L
0.2 6l 9l augny ‘uebiopy eleyo ‘Jakol) L
lejol S 3siid 6l 8l spe)y is)eyoe|g aler ‘asjw|a4 L
poomabpy 8l 6l BIBUS 9SO 7 ‘ennos3 M
Ll 6 BSS||9IN ‘SO ess||o\ Ynowhes M
/1l 6l Koed] ‘tekey] uey ‘uowiwa M
99 uajpebiapury 0¢ (¥4 AT 'uosiswy Aeoelg ‘LOqQED A
] / essl|a|\ ‘SILIOW ess||apy Inowhsag M1
6l Gl Epul ‘puejedog aulpeN 'meybesg ML
Sy AL 8l Ll ukile] ‘auey,0 Awy ‘ureiseyd M1
oL oas 0l 6 seje‘abpupeH wol ‘ysop odas
s|ejol s|ejol apelis) 2z1g 9zIg SSe|) apiy Jayoea] 1anaT
Jooyss apeis sse|D Aeq sy woolisse|) woousse|) apeln)
_ S T cozimdy L T




AUTHORIZATION FOR FISCAL YEAR

CS-7
DATE: , 20 SCHOOL DISTRICT

CERTIFICATION

This is to certify that the Board of Trustees of the above stated School District passed the following motion

at its , 20 meeting authorizing the following to sign commercial

warrants and payroll payment orders as agent of the Board.

“It was moved by

and seconded by

that

Be authorized to sign commercial warrants and payroll payment orders as agent of the Board

of trustees of the School District.

Ayes (Members’ Names):

Noes (Members’ Names):

Motion Carried.”

Authorized Signatures: Board of Trustees Signatures:

(signed) Clerk, Board of Trustees

Return to HCOE Business Office



Cutten School District

4182 Walwt Drive,
Eureka, CA 95503 Superintendent/Principal
(707) 441-3900 « Fax (707) 441-3906 Becky MacQuarrie, EdD

GASB 101 Compensated Absences
Accrual Policy

Effective Date: July 1, 2024

Background

GASB 101 establishes standards of accounting and financial reporting for (a) compensated absences and
(b) associated salary-related payments, including certain defined contribution pensions and defined
contribution other postemployment benefits (OPEB). The requirements of this Statement apply to the
financial statements of all state and local governments.

Governments often provide to their employees paid leave benefits, such as vacation leave and sick leave.
GASB 101 requires that liabilities for compensated absences be recognized for (1) leave that has not been
used and (2) leave that has been used but not yet paid in cash or settled through noncash means.

The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued Statement Number 101 (GASB 101,
“the standard”), effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and all reporting periods
thereafter. Earlier application is encouraged.

Purpose
This policy states the determination of the accrual of compensated absences and salary-related payments

for Sample School District, provides guidance to Sample School District staff about when it is appropriate
to accrue compensated absences and related payments, and describes the measurement and accounting
treatment of compensated absences and related payments under GASB Statement No. 101.

Definitions
Compensated Absences is leave for which employees may receive one or more (a) cash payments when

the leave is used for time off, (b) other cash payments, such as payment for unused leave upon
termination of employment; or (c) noncash settlements, such as conversion to defined benefit
postemployment benefits. The payment or settlement could occur during employment or upon
termination of employment. Compensated absences generally do not have a set payment schedule.
Examples of compensated absences include vacation (or annual) leave, sick leave, paid time off (PTO),
holidays, parental leave, bereavement leave, and certain types of sabbatical leave.

RIDGEWOOD SCHOOL CALIFORNIA CUTTEN SCHOOL

2060 Ridgewood Drive, Eureka. C4 95503 4182 Walnur Drive, Eurcka, CA 95503

(707) 441-3930 » Fax (707) 441-3933 DISTINGUISHED SCHOOLS (707) 441-3900 + Fax (707) 441-3906



Cutten School District

4182 Wulnut Drive,
FEureka, C4 95503 Superintendent/Principal
(707) 441-3900 « Fux (707) 441-3906 Becky MacQuarrie, EdD

Sabbatical leave during which an employee is not required to perform any significant duties for the
government (unrestricted sabbatical leave, as used in this Statement) is a compensated absence.
Sabbatical leave during which an employee is required to perform duties of a different nature for the
government (for example, research instead of teaching) is not a compensated absence.

Salary-related payments are obligations that a government incurs related to providing leave in exchange
for services rendered. (The term salary in salary-related payments represents any pay provided to the
employee, whether it is a fixed amount or an hourly wage.) Examples of salary-related payments include
the employer share of Social Security, Medicare taxes, PERS/STRS, Unemployment Insurance, and
Worker’s Compensation.

General Policy

Compensated Absences

GASB 101 requires that liabilities for compensated absences be recognized for (1) leave that has not been
used and (2) leave that has been used but not yet paid in cash or settled through noncash means.

1. Leave that has not been used:

A the leave is attributable to services already rendered,

B. the leave accumulates, and

C the leave is more likely than not* to be used for time off or otherwise paid in
cash settled through noncash means.

*The term more likely than not means a likelihood of more than 50 percent.

A government should evaluate whether leave is more likely than not to be used for time off or otherwise
paid in cash or settled through noncash means by assessing relevant factors, including the following:

A. The government’s employment policies related to compensated absences.

B. Whether leave that has been earned is, or will become, eligible for use or payment in
the future.

C. Historical information about the use, payment, or forfeiture of compensated absences.

D. Information known to the government that would indicate that historical information

may not be representative of future trends or patterns.

A liability for leave describes above should be measured using an employee’s pay rate as of the date of the financial
statements, except for the following situation:

RIDGEWOOD SCHOOL CALIFORNIA CUTTEN SCHOOL

2060 Ridgewood Drive, Eureka, CA 95503 4182 Walnur Drive, Ewreka, CA 95503

(707) 441-3930 + Fax (707) 441-3933 DISTINGUISHED SCHOOLS (707) 441-3900 « Fax (707) 441-3906



Cutten School District

4182 Walnut Drive.
Eureka, CA 95503 Superintendent/Principal
(707) 441-3900 « Fax (707) 441-3906 Becky MacQuarrie, EdD

a. Ifsome or all of the leave is more likely than not to be paid at a rate
different from the employee’s pay rate at the time the payment is made, a
government should measure that portion of the liability using that different rate as of the
date of the financial statements.

b. If the leave is not attributable to a specific employee as of the date of the financial
statements (for example, if leave has been donated to a shared employee leave pool), a
government should measure the liability using an estimated pay rate that is representative
of the eligible employee population.

c. If some or all of the leave is more likely than not to be settled through noncash means
other than conversion to defined benefit postemployment benefits, a government should
measure the liability based on the amount for which it is more likely than not to be
settled.

2. Leave that has been used:
A liability should be reported when leave is used for time off but has not yet been paid in
cash or settled through noncash means, including the types of leave like unlimited leave
and holiday leave that is taken on a specific date not at the discretion of employees. That
liability, including any applicable salary related payments, should be measured at the
amount of the cash payment or noncash settlement to be made for the use of the leave.

Salary-related payments

GASB 101 requires that a governmental entity should include in the measurement of its liabilities for
compensated absences (for both leave that has been used and leave that has not been used) salary-related
payments that are directly and incrementally associated with the leave, except for salary-related payments
related to defined benefit pensions or defined benefit OPEB.

A salary-related payment may be incrementally associated only with a portion of the recognized leave.

For leave that has not been used, expense for salary-related payments related to defined contribution
pensions or defined contribution OPEB should be recognized when the liability for that leave is
recognized and should be reported as pension expense or OPEB expense, as applicable. Those amounts
should not be reported as a pension liability or an OPEB liability. For leave that has been used,
salary-related payments related to defined contribution pensions or defined contribution OPEB should be
included in a pension liability or an OPEB liability in accordance with the requirements of Statements
(GASB) 68, 73, or 75, as amended.

Our entity has selected 100% of sick leave and salary-related payments to be accrued along with the
entire vacation accrual balance and salary-related payments, based on historical information and

experience.
RIDGEWOOD SCHOOL CUTTEN SCHOOL
2060 Ridgewood Drive, Eureka, C4 95503 CALIFORNIA 4182 Walnut Drive, Eureka, C4 95503

(707) 441-3930 « Fax (707) 441-3933 DISTINGUISHED SCHOOLS (707) 441-3900 « Fax (707) 441-3906



Cutten School District

4182 Walnmut Drive,
Eureka, CA 95503 Superintendent/Principol
(707) 441-3900 ¢ Fux (707) 441-3906 Beeky MacQuarrie, EdD

The determination of accrual of compensated absences and salary-related payments will be reviewed
regularly and adjusted as conditions warrant to ensure compliance with GASB 101 and any subsequent
amendments. Changes to this policy shall be approved by the management of the government entity.

Relationship to Postemployment Benefits

The projected effects on an employer’s defined benefit postemployment benefits liability resulting from a
payment for compensated absences should not be included in the liability for compensated absences.

Some governments allow or require compensated absences (often sick leave) to be paid to an employee
upon termination of employment through a distribution to an individual account (instead of directly to the
employee) to be used for specified purposes, such as payment of the employee’s share of future healthcare
premiums. Leave that (a) has not been used, (b) meets the recognition criteria of leave that not been used
in general policy section, and (c) is more likely than not to be paid in this manner should be included in a
liability for compensated absences following the general measurement of liability measured using an
employee’s pay rate as of the date of the financial statements and the leave is more likely than not to be
paid at a rate different from the employee’s pay rate at the time the payment is made, a government
should measure that portion of the liability using that different rate as of the date of the financial
statements.

Exclusions
The provisions of GASB Statement 101 do not apply to the following;

° Leave that is more likely than not to be settled through conversion to defined benefit
postemployment benefits should not be recognized as a liability for compensated absences.

e For types of compensated absences that are dependent upon the occurrence of a sporadic
event that affects a relatively small proportion of employees in any particular reporting period, a
government should not recognize a liability until the leave commences. For the purposes of this
Statement, parental leave, military leave, and jury duty leave should not be recognized as
liabilities until the leave commences. However, sick leave and unrestricted sabbatical leave
should be recognized in accordance with the provisions in compensated absence under leave that
has not been used.

® For the following types of compensated absences, a government should not recognize a
liability until the leave is used:
A. Leave that employees are able to take as needed without specific limits
(sometimes
referred to as unlimited leave)
B. Holiday leave that is taken on a specific date not at the discretion of employees.
2060 Ridgenaod Drive, Eureks, C1 95503 CALIFORNIA 1582 Wabi Drve, Euv, €1 93503

(707) 441-3930 » Fax (707) 441-3933 DISTINGUISHED SCHOOLS (707) 441-3900 « Fax (707) 441-3906



Cutten School District

4182 IWulnut Drive,
Eureka, CA 95503 SuperintendentiPrincipal
(707) 441-3900 « Fax (707) 441-3906 Becky MacQuarrie, EdD

Calculating the Liability Related to GASB 101 Compensated Absences

A. Determine accumulated leave balances.

B Calculate leave liability based on employee calculated hourly rates. (Additional
information in General Policy Section)

C. Add to leave liability the salary-related payments liability. (e.g., employee taxes and
benefits) — see Definition Section for salary-related payments for additional
information.

D. Adjust total leave liability by projected utilization percentage (if any adjustment

applies)

Other Modifications and Terminations
Changes to the measurement of the liability in future periods due to a change in pay rate should be

recognized in the period of the change.

RIDGEWOOD SCHOOL CALIFORNIA CUTTEN SCHOOL

2060 Ridgewood Drive, Ewreka, CA 95503 4182 Walnur Drive, Eureka, CA 95503

(707) 441-3930 » Fax (707) 441-3933 DISTINGUISHED SCHOOLS (707) 441-3900 « Fax (707) 441-3906



2025-26 Enrollment/Staffing

SDC

RwW (8)

SDC

Cutten (14)

TK

19 38

19

20 78

20

19

19

22 75

22

22

9/

10

23 79

23

23

19 76

19

19

19

24 72

24

24

27 67

27

13/11

27 92

27

27

577

13 teachers

13 Teachers



CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES

This contract (“Contract”) is entered into this _ day of 2025, and is
made by and between Caldwell Flores Winters, Inc. (hereinafter, “CFW?”) and the Cutten
School District of Humboldt County, a California public school district, (hereinafter,
“District”), and collectively are herein after referred to as the “Parties.”

RECITALS

WHEREAS, CFW provides professional consultant services for facilities planning
and assessments, educational program consulting, State aid grants for the modernization
and construction of school facilities, election services for bond/parcel tax campaign
committees, and program implementation services for facilities and educational programs
throughout the State of California;

WHEREAS, the District has contracted under separate agreement with CFW for the
provision of professional consultant services for services to prepare a facilities assessment
and implementation plan, and acknowledges such agreement;

WHEREAS, an affiliate company, CFW Advisory Services LLC, p-ovides

municipal advisory services in the issuance of municipal debt obligations;

WHEREAS, CFW may provide an integrated delivery method for these services for
which the District has been apprised and may contract over time in whole or in part for
these services by separate agreements or through its affiliate company, CFW Advisory
Services LLC;

WHEREAS, the District is seeking to retain the services of a professional consulting
firm for the purpose of providing professional consulting, advice, strategic planning and
solicitation of State grants through the State School Facility Program and related programs
offering funding to California public school districts for facilities programs (hereinafter,
“State Aid Services”);

WHEREAS, the District desires to retain the professional services of CFW to
provide State Aid Services, as approved by the District and more particularly described in
this Contract;

WHEREAS, the District has determined that it cannot provide through its own
personnel the services to be performed by CFW under this Contract, the services provided
by CFW are exempt from Public Contract Code section 20111, and the District has fully
complied with its policies, bylaws, rules, and/or procedures for entering into this Contract;

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration of the covenants set forth
herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is
acknowledged by the Parties, the following is hereby agreed:

Page 1 of 7




I1.

IT1.

Iv.

PROFESSIONAL CONSULTANT SERVICES

CFW agrees to provide the District with professional consulting services in the form
of State Aid Services as more fully set forth and specified in Exhibit A, incorporated
herein and made a part of this Contract by reference.

DISTRICT COOPERATION

In order to perform the proposed scope of work, the District understands and agrees
to cooperate with CFW by furnishing all necessary District information and records
in a timely, diligent and accurate basis to the extent practicable and upon the request
of CFW. On occasion, CFW may require the opportunity to consult with District
staff to obtain information that is not readily available from District records and to
clarify information that is not otherwise self-evident. The District agrees from time
to time to make its staff available for these consultations.

From time to time, when necessary and appropriate, CFW may request that the
District authorize access to consultants and professional services that the District is
currently working with or in need of procurement in order to complete the scope of
work contemplated herein. The District agrees to provide or authorize access to
these additional professional services as necessary to carry out the scope of work, if
needed.

CONFIDENTIALITY OF INFORMATION

CFW recognizes that information related to the services provided by CFW may be
deemed public information and subject to be published and/or disclosed to the
public as determined and directed by the District and/or State Law. Under this
Contract, it shall be the responsibility of the District to make such determination of
whether a particular document or other tangible information is subject to disclosure
and to disclose said information at the appropriate time. Subject to that
determination, CFW shall regard all information received during the performance
of services pursuant to this Contract and all information produced by CFW as
confidential and shall not disclose such information to any other person or party
without prior consent of the District. Upon written determination by the District of
information to be published and/or disclosed to the public, CFW will cooperate to
the extent possible to disclose or publish that information consistent with State Law.

TERM

The Parties recognize and acknowledge that it often takes many years for the District
to secure grant funding through the State School Facility Program and related
programs offering funding to California public school districts for facilities
programs. In light of this consideration, the Parties have agreed to a term as follows
to provide State Aid Services pursuant to Exhibit A, including to develop a strategy,
update the District’s eligibility, submit applications, advocate on the District’s
behalf, and secure funding.

Page 2 of 7



VI.

The Term of this Contract shall commence upon approval by the Board of the
District and shall continue through April 30, 2030. The District may choose to
extend or renew the term of this Contract by a written instrument, mutually agreed
to by the Parties and approved by the Governing Board of the District.

The Parties further recognize that the payment of the fee to CFW is contingent on
the District receiving a grant. It is intended that the obligation to pay the fee shall
survive beyond the term of this Contract for (1) any application submitted by CFW
to the Office of Public School Construction or any other grant agency and/or (2)
work or advocacy performed by CFW on behalf of the District to secure grant
funding. In these cases, payment of the fee shall be consistent with the terms set
forth in Article XIII of this Contract.

INTEGRATED CONTRACT

This Contract in its entirety represents a full and complete understanding of every
kind or nature whatsoever between the parties hereto related to the proposed State
Aid Services and replaces or supersedes any and all preliminary negotiations,
representations or implied covenants inconsistent with the terms of this Contract.

TERMINATION

Recognizing that this contract is a contingency contract and that substantial
professional advice and consultation is being provided by CFW on a contingency
basis with the full expectation of being compensated for those services when
funding becomes available to the District, often years after the work is performed,
this obligation shall survive any termination, whether by expiration of the contract,
termination for cause, or termination for convenience by mutual agreement of the
parties.

In the event CFW fails or refuses to reasonably perform the provisions of the scope
of work, the District may declare a default in the performance of the terms of this
Contract by providing written notice specifying the nature of the default and the
steps necessary to cure the default. CFW shall be provided a period of no less than
twenty-one (21) calendar days from the date of the notice to cure the default. In the
event the District terminates this Contract after the expiration of the cure period,
CFW shall be entitled to its earned compensation at such time that the District
receives grant funding for any application prepared by or submitted on behalf of the
District by CEW to the State School Facility Program and any other related program
offering funding to California public school districts for facilities programs.

The Parties may also agree to mutually terminate this Contract by a writing
reflecting the agreement.

Page 3 of 7



VIL

VIII.

IX.

In the event of any termination, payment of the fee shall be consistent with the terms
set forth in Article XIII of this Contract.

NOTICES

All notices, demands, requests or approvals to be given under this Contract shall be
given in writing and shall be deemed served when delivered personally or on the
fifth business day after the deposit thereof in the United States Mail, postage
prepaid, registered or certified, addressed as provided below:

Cutten School District

ATTN: Becky MacQuarrie, Superintendent
4182 Walnut Drive

Eureka, CA 95503

Caldwell Flores Winters, Inc.

ATTN: Emilio A. Flores, Chief Executive Officer
2163 Harbor Bay Parkway

Alameda, CA 94502

DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Any dispute, claim or controversy arising out of or relating to this Contract or the
breach, termination, enforcement, interpretation or validity thereof, including the
determination of the scope or applicability of this Contract to arbitrate, shall first be
submitted to mediation, and if the matter is not resolved through mediation then to
arbitration in Alameda County before one arbitrator. The arbitration shall be
administered by an organization mutually agreeable by the parties or pursuant to
California Code of Civil Procedure section 1280 et. seq. Judgment on the award
may be entered in any court having jurisdiction. This clause shall not preclude
parties from seeking provisional remedies in aid of arbitration from an appropriate
court. The prevailing party in the arbitration shall be entitled to its reasonable
attorneys’ fees and costs. All fees and costs for mediation and arbitration shall be
split equally.

CONSULTANT NOT AN EMPLOYEE OF THE DISTRICT

CFW shall have no authority to contract on behalf of the District and shall not
represent itself as having such authority. It is expressly understood and agreed by
the Parties that CFW, while engaged in carrying out and complying with any terms
and conditions of this contract, is an independent contractor and not an officer, agent
or employee of aforesaid District.

PREVAILING LAW

This Contract shall be interpreted and shall be governed by California law.

Page 4 of 7



XII.

XIII.

ASSIGNMENT

CFW reserves the right to assign this contract in whole or in part to any successor
or assignee with the approval of the District. Such approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld by District.

ATTORNEY’S FEES

In the event that any action or proceeding, including any arbitration, is brought to
enforce the provisions of this Contract, the prevailing party shall be entitled to all
costs of enforcement, including but not limited to, said party’s reasonable attorney
fees.

FEE FOR STATE AID SERVICES

The District agrees to compensate CFW for State Aid Services as set forth in Exhibit
A at a rate equal to two and one half percent (2.5%) per application (Total Fee) of
the principal amount of any and all grants received by the District for facilities as a
result of State Aid Services provided by CFW pursuant to the State School Facility
Program and/or related programs offering funding to California public school
districts for facilities programs.

The Parties recognize that the payment of the fee to CFW is contingent on the
District ultimately receiving a grant. The Parties also recognize and acknowledge
that it often takes many years for the District to secure grant funding through the
State School Facility Program and related programs offering funding to California
public school districts for facilities programs. The length of the process may extend
beyond the term of this Contract and could also extend beyond the service term of
the District’s Board of Trustees and executive staff entering into this Contract.
Consequently, as previously stated in Section IV, it is intended that the obligation
to pay the fee for State Aid Services provided by CFW shall survive beyond the
term of this Contract.

Given the length of time that is possible from the commencement of State Aid
Services to the awarding and allocation of funds, the Parties agree the following
levels of compensation will be due to CFW if and when funds are awarded to the
District based on State Aid Services provided by CFW. The Parties agree that eighty
percent (80%) of the Total Fee has been earned by CFW once an application is
submitted on behalf of the District for funding for grants from the State School
Facility Program or any other related program offering funding to California public
school districts for facilities programs; ninety percent (90%) of the Total Fee has
been earned by CFW once the District has been notified that such agency will begin
processing the submitted application; and, one hundred percent (100%) of the Total
Fee has been earned by CFW once the State Allocation Board approves the
District’s application and provides apportionment of funding. No fee is paid to CFW
until and unless the District receives an apportionment of funding.

The Total Fee shall be payable to CFW in lump sum within 30 days of receipt of
any such State grant or other grant funds received by the District.

Page 5 of 7



XIV. APPROVAL

In executing this Contract, persons signing on behalf of CFW or District represent
that each has the authority to do so. This Contract shall not be executed by the
District until such time as the Governing Board has approved and authorized its
execution. In executing this contract, persons signing on behalf of CFW or District
represent that each has the authority to do so.

This contract is hereby agreed to and executed on this day of 2025.
AGREED:

Emilio A. Flores, Chief Executive Officer Becky MacQuarrie, Superintendent
Caldwell Flores Winters, Inc. Cutten School District

Page 6 of 7



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK

CFW agrees to provide State Aid Services pursuant to this Contract and as provided below:

1.

Review educational and facilities goals and background materials provided by
the District to CFW

Analyze District’s eligibility under the State School Facility Program and
related programs offering funding to California public school districts for
facilities programs

Conduct walk through with District staff of existing facilities to verify District
facility information, if needed

Develop strategy to establish available eligibility and provide
recommendations suitable to District needs

Establish, update, or re-establish the District’s baseline eligibility for funding
with the State as required

Assist District in preparing and submitting necessary applications
Meet with State representatives, if required

Attend necessary informational and decision-making meetings, both locally
and at the State, including the Office of Public School Construction, State
Allocation Board, and California Department of Education, as requested by
the District

Assist District in the securing and receipt of State funds, including
coordinating responses to State requests for additional information

Page 7 of 7




|



CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL CONSULTANT SERVICES

This contract is entered into this _ day of 2025 (hereinafter “Contract),
and is made by and between Caldwell Flores Winters, Inc. (hereinafter “CFW”) and the
Cutten School District a California public school district located in Humboldt County
(hereinafter, “District”), collectively hereinafter to be referred as the “Parties”.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, CFW provides professional consultant services for facilities planning
and assessments, State aid grants for the modernization and construction of school facilities,
educational program consulting, election services for bond/parcel tax campaign
committees, and program implementation services for facilities and educational programs
throughout the State of California;

WHEREAS, the District has contracted under separate agreement with CFW for the
provision of professional consultant services for State aid grants for the modernization and
construction of school facilities, and acknowledges such agreement;

WHEREAS, an affiliate company, CFW Advisory Services LLC, provides
municipal advisory services in the issuance of municipal debt obligations;

WHEREAS, CFW may provide an integrated delivery method for these services for
which the District has been apprised and may contract over time in whole or in part for
these services by separate agreements or through its affiliate company, CFW Advisory
Services LLC;

WHEREAS, the District desires to engage CFW to provide professional consultant
services for the provision of planning consulting services as more particularly described in
Exhibit A (hereinafter “Scope of Work™) and as such is made a part of this Contract;

WHEREAS, the District has determined independently that it cannot provide
through its own personnel the services to be performed by CFW under this Contract;

WHEREAS, the District has determined independently that the services and Scope
of Work to be provided by CFW are exempt from Public Contract Code Section 20111, and
the District has fully complied with State Law, its policies, bylaws, rules, and/or procedures
for entering into this Contract;

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration of the covenants set forth

herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is
acknowledged by the District and CFW, the Parties hereby agree as follows:

Page 1 of 6




II.

I11.

Iv.

PROFESSIONAL CONSULTANT SERVICES

CFW agrees to provide the District with professional consultant services as more
fully set forth and specified in the Scope of Work (Exhibit A), incorporated herein
for all purposes and made a part of this Contract by reference.

DISTRICT COOPERATION

In order to perform the Scope of Work, CFW will require complete and accurate
information. The District understands and agrees to cooperate with CFW by
furnishing all necessary District information and records in a timely, diligent and
accurate basis to the extent practicable and upon the request of CFW. On occasion,
CFW may require the opportunity to consult with District staff to obtain information
that is not readily available from District records and to clarify information that is
not otherwise self-evident. The District agrees from time to time to make its staff
available for these consultations.

From time to time, when necessary and appropriate, CFW may request that the
District authorize access to consultants that the District is currently working with in
order to complete the Scope of Work contemplated herein. The District agrees to
provide or authorize access to these additional professional services as necessary to
carry out the scope of work, if needed.

CONFIDENTIALITY OF INFORMATION

CFW recognizes that information related to the services provided by CFW may be
deemed public information and subject to be published and/or disclosed to the
public as determined and directed by the District and/or State Law. Under this
Contract, it shall be the responsibility of the District to make such initial
determination of whether a particular document or other tangible information is
subject to disclosure and to disclose said information at the appropriate time. While
the District makes that determination, CFW shall regard all information received
during the performance of services pursuant to this Contract and all information
produced by CFW as confidential and shall not disclose such information to any
other person or party without prior consent of the District. Upon written
determination by the District of information to be published and/or disclosed to the
public, CFW will cooperate to the extent possible to disclose or publish that
information consistent with State Law.

TERM

The Parties have agreed to a term of one (1) year for this Contract. The term of this
Contract shall commence upon approval by the Governing Board of the District and
execution by the Superintendent and shall continue through a twelve-month period
thereafter. The District may choose to extend or renew the term of this Contract by
a written instrument, mutually agreed to by the Parties and approved by the District.

Page 2 of 6



VL

VII.

VIIIL.

INTEGRATED CONTRACT

This Contract in its entirety represents a full and complete understanding of every
kind or nature whatsoever between the parties hereto and replaces or supersedes any
and all preliminary negotiations, representations or implied covenants inconsistent
with the terms of this Contract. This Contract is not intended to replace or supersede
any prior contract for services between the Parties and may supplement and provide
additional services not contemplated under those agreements.

TERMINATION

In the event CFW fails or refuses to reasonably perform the provisions of the Scope
of Work, the District may declare a default in the performance of the terms of this
Contract by providing written notice specifying the nature of the default and the
steps necessary to cure the default. CFW shall be provided a period of no less than
twenty-one (21) calendar days from the date of the notice to cure the default.

In the event that the District terminates this Contract, or the Parties mutually agree
to terminate this Contract, CFW shall be compensated pursuant to Section XIII
based on the percentage of work completed as of the date of termination.

NOTICES

All notices, demands, requests or approvals to be given under this Contract shall be
given in writing and shall be deemed served when delivered personally or on the
fifth business day after the deposit thereof in the United States Mail, postage
prepaid, registered or certified, addressed as provided below.

Cutten School District

ATTN: Becky MacQuarrie, Superintendent
4182 Walnut Drive

Eureka, CA 95503

Caldwell Flores Winters, Inc.

ATTN: Emilio A. Flores, Chief Executive Officer
2163 Harbor Bay Parkway

Alameda, CA 94502

DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Any dispute, claim or controversy arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the
breach, termination, enforcement, interpretation or validity thereof, including the
determination of the scope or applicability of this agreement to arbitrate, shall first
be submitted to mediation, and if the matter is not resolved through mediation then
to arbitration in Alameda County before a single arbitrator. The arbitration shall be
administered by an organization mutually agreeable by the parties or pursuant to
California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1280 et. seq. Judgment on the award
may be entered in any court having jurisdiction. This clause shall not preclude

Page 3 of 6



IX.

XL

XII.

XTII.

XIV.

parties from seeking provisional remedies in aid of arbitration from an appropriate
court. The prevailing party in the arbitration shall be entitled to its reasonable
attorneys’ fees and costs. All fees and costs for mediation and arbitration shall be

split equally.
CONSULTANT NOT AN EMPLOYEE OF THE DISTRICT

CFW shall have no authority to contract on behalf of the District and shall not
represent itself as having such authority. It is expressly understood and agreed by
the Parties that CFW, while engaged in carrying out and complying with any terms
and conditions of this contract, is an independent contractor and not an officer, agent
or employee of the District.

PREVAILING LAW

This agreement shall be interpreted and shall be governed by California law.

ASSIGNMENT

CFW reserves the right to assign this contract in whole or in part to any successor
or assignee with the written approval of the District. Such approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld by District.

ATTORNEY’S FEES

In the event that any action or proceeding, including any arbitration, is brought to
enforce the provisions of this Contract, the prevailing party shall be entitled to
reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs of enforcement as determined by the court or
any statute.

FEE FOR SCOPE OF WORK

Pursuant to Exhibit A, Section I, CFW agrees to provide professional services to
develop a Facilities assessment and Implementation Plan. District shall compensate
CFW a total fee of $20,000.00, payable in four (4) installments of $5,000.00,
commencing the first of the month after the execution of this Contract, followed by
monthly payments on the first of the month for each period thereafter.

The District shall reimburse CFW for all out of pocket expenses incurred by CFW
to complete the proposed scope of work outlined in Exhibit A. The expenses shall
be reimbursed by the District at the rate of their direct cost, plus an additional ten
percent (10%) as invoiced by CFW, not to exceed $5,000 in total.

APPROVAL

This Contract shall not be executed by the District until such time as the Governing
Board has approved and authorized its execution.

Page 4 of 6



In executing this contract, persons signing on behalf of CFW or District represent
that each has the authority to do so.

This contract is hereby agreed to and executed on this day of 2025.
AGREED:

Emilio A. Flores, Chief Executive Officer Becky MacQuarrie, Superintendent
Caldwell Flores Winters, Inc. Cutten School District

Page 5 of 6



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK

The following is the agreed Scope of Work between Caldwell Flores Winters, Inc. (“CFW?)
and the Cutten School District (“District”) for professional planning services to establish a
Facilities Assessment and Implementation Plan as described below.

1. Review facility program goals and related needs, with a focus on implementing
the District’s desired educational program (e.g., development of additional
school facilities, expansion of school support facilities, mobile 1:1 devices and
technology).

2. Conduct school site visit with District staff to identify current campus usage,
required improvements, opportunities for reconfiguration, and options for
facility placement.

3. Produce educational specifications for the required size and desired usage of
new or modernized facilities.

4. Review District educational program, enrollment, capacity to house students,
projected residential growth, existing State aid eligibility, available educational
program facility requirements and impact on proposed need for facilities.

5. Incorporate design standards, 21% century best practices, and relevant
California Department of Education criteria for proposed facilities.

6. Perform school site analysis using findings from school site visit, background
information, and digital geographic resources (e.g. Google Earth) to develop
one or more school site plan options for review and further input by District
staff.

7. Work with District staff to integrate prior or third party studies, identify facility
Improvements, estimated costs of proposed improvements, required
sequencing, interim housing an phasing, if needed.

8. Review and incorporate cost estimates and provide recommendations for
adjustments to identified school facility needs.

9. Integrate finance plan to incorporate State aid opportunities.

10. Tailor a capital program to meet the availability and timing for anticipated
funding and estimated escalation of costs.

11. Prepare a phasing and sequencing plan for proposed capital expenses including
proposed sources and uses for implementation.

12. Document and publish findings within a Facilities Assessment and
Implementation Plan for Board consideration.

13. Provide a bound hard copy of the Facilities Assessment and Implementation
Plan and a digital copy for District use.

Page 6 of 6




CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Job Title: Bond/Construction Secretary (Part-Time)

Position Summary:

The Bond/Construction Secretary will provide administrative support for school construction and
bond-related projects. This position is responsible for maintaining and organizing construction
documentation, tracking project budgets, assisting with billing processes, and supporting
communication between district staff, contractors, and stakeholders. The role requires strong
organizational skills, attention to detail, and the ability to manage multiple responsibilities
efficiently.

Work Schedule:
1 day per week (8 hours/day)

Location:
Cutten Elementary School District, District Office

Responsibilities:
e Track and maintain detailed construction budgets and expenditures
e Organize and file construction plans, permits, contracts, and related paperwork
e Process and monitor construction-related invoices and billing documentation
e Maintain communication with contractors, project managers, and district administrators
e Assist in preparing reports, meeting notes, and construction updates
e Schedule and coordinate project-related meetings and site visits

e Schedule and prepare for Citizen Oversight Committee meetings, including
preparing agendas, distributing materials, and taking meeting minutes

e Ensure compliance with district and regulatory documentation standards

e Assist the Superintendent, and Business Officer with administrative tasks related
to bond and construction projects, as needed

e Perform general administrative tasks as needed

e Other duties as assigned

Qualifications:



e High school diploma or equivalent required

e Previous experience in a secretarial or administrative support role, preferably in
construction billing or school district settings

e Strong organizational and record-keeping skills

e Proficient with Microsoft Office Suite (Word, Excel, Outlook)

e Proficient in Google Workspace (Docs, Sheets, Drive, Gmail, Calendar, etc.)
e Excellent communication skills, both written and verbal

e Ability to manage time effectively and meet deadlines

e Familiarity with construction or bond projects is a plus

Preferred Qualifications:

e Experience with construction billing or financial tracking

* Knowledge of public sector or school district administrative processes

Compensation:
Salary range: $20.44 — $31.53 per hour, depending on experience and qualifications.



2045

-l
RESOLUTION NO.

A Resolution of the Governing Board of the
C(’;‘ZZ@/’J School District Urging the California
Department of Education to Fulfill Its
Obligations Under Senate Bill 1315 and to
Prioritize the Needs of Small School Districts

WHEREAS, in Fall 2024, the Governor signed Senate Bill 1315 (Archuleta),
amending Section 33318.2 of the Education Code and Section 9795 of the Government
Code, requiring the California Department of Education (CDE) to submit a report by March
1, 2025, identifying all Local Education Agency (LEA) reporting requirements, specifying the
purpose of each, and making recommendations for the consolidation, elimination, or
shortening of those requirements; and

WHEREAS, CDE’s submitted report, completed on March 1, 2025, failed to fully
comply with the clear statutory mandates, omitting mandated plans and reports, omitting
recommendations for consolidation and elimination of reports and plans, postponing such
proposals until an unspecified future date beyond the March 1 deadline; and

WHEREAS, the report conspicuously failed to capture numerous mandatory LEA
reporting requirements, including but not limited to: the Local Control and Accountability
Plan (LCAP), School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA), and extensive federal and state
compliance plans tied to categorical funding, among others (See Attachment); and

WHEREAS, the report inadequately distinguishes between the burdens faced by
different LEA types, including the substantial and disproportionate impact reporting has on
small school districts, which often have extremely limited administrative staff; and

WHEREAS, small school districts frequently must divert valuable educator time
away from direct student services to prepare duplicative, complex, and often unnecessary
reports—many of which lack evidence of being meaningfully reviewed or utilized to
improve educational outcomes; and

WHEREAS, the irony cannot be overlooked that while CDE demands an
extraordinary volume of reporting from school districts under tight timelines, it failed to
meet the legislature’s straightforward request for a complete and compliant report on time;
and



WHEREAS, the sheer number of mandatory and voluntary reporting requirements,
as documented by the California School Boards Association (CSBA) in Drowning in
Documentation and confirmed through stakeholder feedback, continues to erode the
ability of educators—particularly in small, rural communities—to focus on instructionat
improvement and student well-being; and

WHEREAS, it is imperative for the health of California’s educational system that the
burden of reporting be immediately reduced, especially for school districts serving fewer
than 2,500 students, with flexibility, exemptions, or abbreviated reporting formats provided
to small LEAsS;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of the
School District hereby:

A. Finds that the CDE’s March 1, 2025 report fails to meet the clear statutory
requirements of Senate Bill 1315, and therefore calls on the legislature and the Governor to
reject the report as noncompliant;

B. Demands that CDE immediately amend and resubmit a report that:

 ldentifies all LEA reporting and planning requirements, including LCAPs
and SPSAs;

» Includes a complete set of recommendations for consolidation,
elimination, or streamlining of reporting mandates; and

» Categorizes the burdens based on LEA size, with specific relief proposals
for small school districts;

C. Urges the CDE to:

e Reduce LEA reporting obligations by a minimum of 25%, as outlined in
CSBA’s Drowning in Documentation report;

« Waive duplicative or non-essential reports for districts with enrollments
under 1,000 students;

» Develop abbreviated reporting formats for small districts to ensure equity
in administrative workload;

D. Requests that a final list of reports and plans to be consolidated, eliminated,
or truncated be delivered no later than Juty 1, 2025, in order to allow for implementation in
the 2025-26 school year;



E. Encourages other small school districts across California to adopt similar
resolutions, join in coordinated advocacy, and demand that California’s educational
bureaucracies prioritize classroom instruction and student outcomes over redundant
paperwork;

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the&ﬁ' School District at

a duly noticed public meeting held on , by the following vote:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
DATED:

President, Governing Board
School District

DATED:

Clerk, Governing Board
School District

CERTIFICATION

[, [Superintendent Name], Superintendent and Secretary to the Governing Board of the
School District of County, California, do hereby
certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution and reflection of its vote
as duly adopted by said Board at a meeting thereof, which Resolution is on file and of
record in the office of the Superintendent.




Date:

[Superintendent Name]
Superintendent and Secretary to the
Governing Board

School District




